ORANGEVILLE TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
January 6, 2026 at 6:00 p.m.
7350 Lindsey Rd., Plainwell, Ml 49080

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Approval of Agenda
Approval of Minutes of December 2, 2025 Township Board Meeting
Treasurer's Report:
Paying of the bills
Correspondence:
Depariment Reports:

Fire Dept. - Chief Matt Elkins

District 6 County Commissioner, Marsha Bassett

Martin Township Library Report, no report received

Barry County Planning & Zoning Monthly Inspection Report, no report received
Public Comments: Limited fo five minutes per speaker.
Old Business:

Installation of .additional snow/ice shield

Reply to Public Comment regarding community center rental increases

Trim overhanging branches on drive to recycle center

Americans with Disabilities Act; stating that if those with disabilities notify the clerk within 10 days prior to the
meeting, accommodations will be furnished to satisfy such disabilities and allow meaningful attendance.
Individuals with Disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the clerk; Mel Risner at 7350
Lindsey Rd., Plainwell, MI 49080 or phone number 269-664-4522.

-Over -




New Business: Medical Officer position to be filled
Fire Department Maintenance Technician position
Upcoming contracts

Gun Ho Association requested to be added as an eligible Non-Profit for hall
renting purposes

Renewal of Dues to Sam’s Club and MiDeal

Dates for Budget Workshops

Board Member Comments
Adjourn...

Next Regular Meeting: February 3, 2026 at 6:00 pm




DRAFT ORANGEVILLE TOWNSHIP MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 2, 2025

Meeting called to order 6 pm. All board members present, Fire Chief Elkins and 4 guests.
Pledge of allegiance

Motion Clerk Risner to amend the agenda as discussed. Seconded Treasurer Ritchie, all ayes,
motion carried.

Motion Supervisor Conner to amend the November 11*" meeting minutes with corrections
discussed. Seconded Clerk Risner, all ayes, motion carried.

Treasurer’s Report:
November receipts $2,424.84 disbursements $26,246.56 balance $369,199.57

Motion Treasurer Ritchie to pay $13,643.28 and any other bills forthcoming in the month of
December. Seconded Clerk Risner, ayes; Clerk Risner, Trustee Risner, Treasurer Ritchie —
nays; Trustee Ribble, Supervisor Conner, motion carried 3-2

Correspondence: Report on file

Fire Dept Report:

November calls: 34 total

6 fire, 5 personal injury accidents, 1 property damage, 17 medicals, 4 good intent, 1 canceled
en route

Mutual aid given none and received 1. |

Training: Two members entered Barry County Firefighter Academy starting January.
Year-to-date as of November 30: 383 calls; up 101 from last year (comparison to prior years
provided; 2022 total 434; 2023 total 261 at end of November).

Report on file

Commissioner’s Report: N/A
Library Report: N/A
Planning & Zoning: Report on file




Public Comment: Supervisor Conner read email from Linda Ribble

Old Business
Jodi Patrick gave Orangeville Day update. Just under $10,000 raised, still determining use of
funds.

Motion Clerk Risner to place OCO Peninsula sign in office side of building entry area.
Seconded Trustee Ribble, all ayes, motion carried.

Website ADA compliance-no action taken

Motion Trustee Ribble to approve the Surf Internet application once the application answers
are completed satisfactorily. Seconded Clerk Risner, all ayes, motion carried.

Motion Clerk Risner to amend the budget as presented. Seconded Trustee Risner, roll call
vote; Clerk Risner-aye, Treasurer Ritchie-aye, Trustee Risner-aye, Trustee Ribble-aye,
Supervisor Conner-aye, Nay; none, motion carried.

Motion Clerk Risner to approve Barry County Road Commission annual meeting January 6,
2026 at 5 pm. Seconded Treasurer Ritchie, all ayes, motion carried.

New Business
Motion Clerk Risner to approve the 2026 Board calendar with the BCRC annual meeting as
the first meeting date. Seconded Treasurer Ritchie, all ayes, motion carried.

Motion Clerk Risner to approve the WAEMS interlocal agreement amendment. Seconded
Trustee Risner, all ayes, motion carried.

Consensus to revisit ice/snow shield over doors and drop box in January meeting after
getting estimates and possible recommendations.

Board Comments; Trustee Risner, Trustee Ribble, Treasurer Ritchie, Supervisor Conner, Clerk
Risner '

Mation Trustee Risner to adjourn. Seconded Clerk Risner, all ayes, meeting adjourned at 7:15

Mel Risner/Clerk
Unapproved minutes




CLERK CORRESPONDENCE January 2026

Submitted payment to cyber incident attorneys for $2500 which was our
deductible (total cyber incident billing $16,847.25)

Submitted proof of payment to insurance for cyber IT reimbursement $2040
Vivian and | signed & submitted the Surfnet Metro Act application

Received a message from Cody Visser that Plane Dumpsters may not be
renewing the current transfer station agreement as he won’t have the
employees to man it on Saturdays. He could still supply the bins and do the
transport. Will know in a month whether this will happen. Just wanted the
board to be aware of this.

Received title for fire truck after paying it off




ORANGEVILLE TOWNSHIP
VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT

From: Chief Matt Elkins Date: 1-6-2026
Subject: December Monthly Report To: Township Board

Fire runs for month of December:
(4) Fires
(3) PI Accident
(2) PD Accident
(16) Medical
(4) 6Good Intent calls
(2) Canceled in route

Mutual given 1
Mutual aid Received 1
Vandam & Krusinga completed the wall project at the station.

New Seek thermal purchased by Orangeville Fire association has been put into service
Cadet Karter Ribble and Daniel Armentrout Start Fire academy this week.

Thank you, Chief Elkins




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: January 6, 2026

Requestor/Contact Person: Clerk Risner

Budget Line Item (if applicable}: Township Hall Repair & Maintenance
REQUEST DETAILS: Install an additional snow/ice shield per request of Ketchum
Snow Plowing. Heavy snowfall builds up making'it difficult to shovel sidewalk
Attached is bid




R B g
FeTIVIATE

=

ALTERNATIVE

—=+ ROQFING SOLUTIONS —

Alternative Roofing Solutions

2680 Swift Rd

Bellevue , Ml 49021

Phone: (517) 852-2044

Email: arsmetalroofer@gmail.com

Web: www.alternativeroofingsolutionsllc.com/

Prepared For

Melrisner Orangeville, township.
7350 Lindsey Rd

Plainwell, Mi

(269) 672-2324

Estimate # 928

Date 12/16/2025

Business / Tax# 517 852 2044

Description Total
Standing seam, snow rail. $3,478.00
Subtotal $3,478.00
Total $3,478.00
Deposit Due $250.00

Scan to Pay Online

Notes:

Price is for installing, standing seam snow rail across back 5 doors and Dropbox in front of

building.
Will not be able to install until after the roof is clear from snow.
Balance due when job completed

Pagelof2




By signing this document, the customer agrees to the services and conditions outlined in this
document.

Edwin Hershberger‘ Melrisner Orangeville, township.

Page 2 of 2




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: January 6, 2026
REQUESTOR/CONTACT PERSON: Clerk Risner
BUDGET LINE ITEM (if applicable):

REQUEST DETAILS: Reply to Linda Ribble public comment email regarding
justification for community center rental increase. First of all, it was on the May
13, 2025 agenda. May 13, 2025 meeting minutes reflect action taken by the

board:

Motion Clerk Risner to approve a rental fee increase to $120 effective January 1,
2026 on the Community Hall Rental Agreement and policy. Waive rental fee for
- Orangeville Community Outreach, Orangeville Fire Fighters Association,
Orangeville Day as these nonprofits are specific benefit to all Orangeville
township residents. To add the additional wording to the agreement form;
Rental fee is $100, deposit is $75. Effective January 1, 2026 rental fee is $120.
No fee is charged for memorial/funeral luncheon if deceased is a current
township resident. No fee is charged for governmental agencies requesting use
of the hall. Second Treasurer Ritchie, all ayes, motion carried.




COMMUNITY CENTER REVENUE/EXPENDITURE

2024

Revenue Hall Rental $7300
Expenditures

Utilities  $14,239 (2/3) $9493
Contracted Services $6489
(WM, Key Cleaning, Cleaning Lady Wooten)
Operating Supplies 41664
2025 as of Dec 31*

Revenue Hall Rental $4700
Expenditures

Utilities $10,100 {2/3) $6733
Contracted Services $6576
Operating Supplies $710

Additional Costs would include; Snow plowing, insurance, water testing,
maintenance hourly wage, painting, replacing tables/chairs, electrical &
heating/air conditioning repairs




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: January 6, 2026

Requestor/Contact Person: Clerk Risner

Budget Line Item (if applicable): Transfer Station Miscellaneous

REQUEST DETAILS: Trim overhanging branches on drive so Plane Dumpster
trucks don’t hit them | -

Was bid previously and Monty’s Tree Service trimming did not address the
problem properly. Attached is Dan’s Tree Service bid (the only other bid we had
received)




Prepared For

Orangevilte Township

Dans Tree Service Inc. Estimate # 2529
£625 Marsh Roa d Date 08/11/2025
Shelbyville, Mi 49344
Phone: (269) 664-5455
Email: melkins83@gmail.com
Web: www.danstreeservicemi.com
Description Total
Elevate trees over drive. $1,450.00
Elevate trees over drive
Chip brush
Remove wood.
Subtotal $1,450.00
Total $1,450.00




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: /¢ /z0 2¢

Requestor/Contact Person: Matt Elkins
Budget Line Item (if applicable}: 101-336-703-001

REQUEST DETAILS: Medical Officer position needs to filled

**  pd like to move Corey Ribble into that position immediately




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: 1/6/2026

Requestor/Contact Person: Matt Elkins
Budget Line Item (if applicable): 101-336-703.001

REQUEST DETAILS: approving Keith Ribble for Fire department
Maintenance technician for $23 hr

* he’s been giving alot of free time saving us of thousands in contractor fees

* Previous projects he has done at the station as follows generator repairs,
electrical, Hvac, vehicles, plumbing, gear rack redesign, small engine
repairs on our vent fans, chainsaws, k12 and vent saw.

* Not only saving the township money but also lots of downtime not
waiting on estimates and contractors

* I’'m up for whatever the board decides we can do a pilot program of 6
months? revisit to see if it’s working out for the best interest of the
township

* I'm willing to oversee this and answer for every project that he's asked to
do.

* | truly believe this is a great opportunity for the township and a great

opportunity for us to be good stewards of the citizens tax dollars




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: 1/6/26

Requestor/Contact Person: Vivian Conner
Budget Line Item (if applicable): Multiple

Bid out upcoming contracts




CONTRACTS WE SIGN:

WASTE MANAGEMENT *(WILL MAIL/EMAIL RENEWAL)
WICKHAM CEMETERY (RENEW APRIL 1)

WAYNE BOURDO *

SIEGFRIED CRANDALL (WILL EMAIL RENEWAL)
KEYSTONE CONNECT (WILL MAIL/EMAIL RENEWAL)
PLANE DUMPSTERS (RENEW APRIL 1)

KETCHUM LAWNCARE (RENEW APRIL 1)

MERLEX *

CONTRACTED LABOR:

KEY CLEANING (BI-MONTHLY & ANNUAL STRIP, GROUT TILE)
B S & A (ANNUAL SUPPORT) |
BROOK WOOTEN (MONTHLY & WINDOW CLEANING)
ADAMS REMCO {(QUARTERLY)

PLUMMERS (MONTHLY)

PIXELVINE {(MONTHLY)




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: January 6, 2026

Requestor/Contact Person: Vivian Conner
Budget Line item (if applicable): 101-000-671.00

REQUEST DETAILS: Gun Ho Association is requesting approval to be added
as a non-profit that can use the township hall for public meetings at no charge.

Attached documents presented,
Gun-Ho Articles of Incorporation

Michigan Attorney General Opinion 6942
MCL - Act 137 of 1929, Chapter 455




SRR
LR

gl

aoppe

R RS E A T S NG G € AT A

TR

L EEE

£ 308 e, B84,
dmaerdy Eina M L o

- (THIS s A PART OF THE ATTACHED CURPORATE DOCUMENT AND SHOULD NOT BE DE‘I’ACHEO)

.. STATEOFMMCHIGAN. . .
- DEPARTMENT OF msasunvg___,:j e
~ CORPORATION DIVIS: ON - oo

LANS?HG MICHTBAN

. bo NOT WRETE IN SPACES BELOW FOR DEPARfMENT USE

| DATE BFCLIVED:

SEp 25 1970

s g W

SEP2 9]970

FILED

Mu:hqvan m partment nf Treasury

S SEP 291970
- _ STATE TREASURER
- =] N ) ]
NAML i ¢ CRPODRATI ON ‘ )
Gun-Ho, Incorpor&ted
CORPORATE (30( UMENT - .
, articles of Mcorporation ) e e

YN




{non-Profit)
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

~
va

e BUNHO _TNGORPORATZD

THESE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION are signed and ascknowledpged by

the incorporators for the purpnase of forming a non-profit summer

regort owners corporation under the provisions of ACT KO. 137 of the
Public Acts of Michigan for the year 1929, ag smended.

ARTICLE I o

The nsme of the corporaticn is - GUN-HO, INCORPORATED.

ARTICLE II

The following constitutes a list of the names and addresses of
the incorporatnrs and the legel desoripiion of the land owned by

"each such incovporator, which landas are hereby declared to be sub~-

Joct to the Jurisdiction of thig corporation to the extent provided
in gsald Act No. 2137. A1l such lands ere located in the Townshlp of

Orangevilie County of Barry and State of Michigan,
and to the eXtent that such lands are platted lots within platted
subdivigions they ure 1listed hereinafter by lot number within such
gubdivigsions:

Lynden Johncock Flat and Lynden Johncock Plat No, 1.

#illiam % Hancy Johnsen - 5820 Cromwell, Portage, Michigen; Ldt i75
Jack Johncock - 113 Grand, NE, Grand Rapids, Michigan; Lot 181
John &% Patsy Lake — 4180 Blue Lagoon Rd, Shelbyville, Mich; Lot 167,8

- @. Stanley Hook - 516 Collaﬁe ¥E, Grand Raplds Lot 210
Simmy & Florence Phlezar -~ 5185 Blue Iagoon R4, Shelbyville Lot 170
M.C.& Caroline Lake - 4185 Blue Lagoon Rd, Shelbyville Lot 165
Orin & Marjoris Aradt - 42061 Blue Lagoon Rd, Shelbyville Lot 159
Robert & Norma Boyle ~ 4281 Blue Lagoon Rd, Shelbyville Lot 157
Lynden & Marilyn Johncock, Jr - 4310 Blue Lagoon Road !l Lot 200,
Jemed &.DLee Simon « 12567 Blue Lagoon Rd, Shelbdbyville Lot 145
Peter & Gladys VanderVeen - 12591 Blue Lageon Rd H Lot 142
Mildreg Mook o Sasie <S8 GSfenley Week: o 7o ottt 0 T Lot 20
Sarah Buffenbarger - Route 1, Shelbyville, Mlichlgan Lot 101
Alanson & Betty.Jo Kenyon - Route 1, Shelbyville Lot 17
Ernest Annls ~ Route 1, Shelbyville, Lot 22
Rennith & Joyce Johnecock - Route 1, Shelbyville Lot 25
Carl % Berma Dehn - Route 1, Shelbyville, Lot 26
Lynden & Esther Johncock, Sr - Route 1, Shelbyville Lot 193
G. Dean & Norma Armour - Route 1, Shelbyvills Lot 48
Jerry & Dorlene Johmcock - Route 1, Shelbyville Lot 127,8




ARTELE III

The purposes fnr which the corporatlon ls formed ere as fol-
lows: To exeroise certain pollce powers over the landa owned by oOT
within the jurisdiction of this sorporatlion; to establish by-laws,
provide penalties far the viplation thersnf, and to do any end all
things prescribed 1n, 511lauwable under and incidental to the poWers

and duties set forth in sald Ackt No. 137, of the Public Acts of
Michigan for the year 1929, as asmended.

ARTICLE TV
The locetion of the first reglstered office 1s: Gun-Ho,

Gun TLake .
The post office adéress of the rirat reglstered office 1s: _

Shelbyville, Mlchigan 49344 .

ARTICLE V

The neme of the first reglstered agent 1s Jack Johnceek

ARTICLE VI

The usmes and addregsez ol the flrast board af trustees snd the
term which each shall serve are as followa:

AME ADDRESS TERM
Jack Johncock Woute 1, Shelbyville, Michlgan 2 years
G.Stanley Hook 516 College, HE, Grand Raplds 2 yeanrs
Sarah Buffenbarger Route 1, Shelbyville, Michlgan 2 years
#.C. Lake 4185 Blue lagoon Road, Sheldyvlille 2 years
Jerry Johncock Route 1, Shelbyville, Mlchigan 2 years
Lynden Johncock, Sr Route 1, Shelbyville, Michlgan 2 years

Fach trugtee ghall serve for the period of years set opposite
hig name and untll his suoccessor 1s duly elected ané qualified; and
sach trustee hereafter slacted shall serve for a perlod of two
yoars or until hls successcor ghall be elected and qualified. The
Board of Trustesg shell conslst of aix { &) menmbers.

ARTICIE VII

Sald corporation ls organized upon & non-stock basla.




The amount of agsats which sald corperation pnsgesaes ig:
Real property: None.
Peraonal property: None.

Said corporation 1s to be financed uncer the following general
plan: The assesasment and collectlon of annual dues and/or special
nssesaments agdinst the lots within the jurisdictien of thls corpcr-
ation or which may hereafter dome within the Jurisdiction of this

corporation all in accordance with sald Act No. 137, Publle Acts of
Michigan for 1929, as amendad.

SRTICLE VIII
The term of the corporete existence 13 perpetual.
ARTICLE IX .

Meetings of thls corporation ghall be held in _ Barry
County, Michigan.

WE, the incorporators, slgn our names this 26tn daz/nf September

, 1970_-

%
J2 QLo J %/

i £ Dod
.W,LM»@@WM 2/

-*fi;_u.éééﬂf; g(glfg (A '(5352441421. dﬂ?
%M’A}MM K- ;J/’Zy; 0 ,}3,

‘ %g ,é]m«% T /ﬁ' M-MWE_/

s’ d o i r Al !,,, "y
T Wﬂ,mm Ty B elnt.
K% ‘ / ~ (¢ '.,.,,/-, A

/ ¢

=3




h o dau

-

LN R

.-

Lo

£

AN LSy

S‘-."-

-~
——
—

an
7L

;.JL J...w .:.ﬂ % ././
W o + - . J U
- n U P oL Ty
. e o] ) R )
. P \J bd
5 RN Voo Y
) t 3 ! /
iy 1 ~ < //
Id m. jﬁr J Ly M
) T = N — -
w 3 ~5T } (R i “
o G fs S s Wy AY)
04l Ry ol €
L= < A._.. ) o
. V) ’ £
= £ o wq. i
] . >
" 2 v o J
S £ P 2k
< (%) y <
v < ot P )
O e 19 2% - ” ]
]
,mwx W..xnu ) _,._J
W -z i© _
hS .
5 S H
12 ]
3 it
Y i oy
..D 3
¢ v p
b w ~ 3
4 w
5 o ) .
& 'R U
< © 7 v
e a. i W_ v
5 +3 v
a) LY,
o,
< - >
« - -%
..r.w A 1) o




STATE OF MICHIGAN )
7 85
COUNTY OF 5m/7 )

‘ L
On thisaﬁ?_ day of Y(: e /25 » 19 7L, before me personally

appeareé 7 T

aeks i

JAck  JoHW oK

to me known to be the persons who are dogeribed in and whoe executed
the foregoling instrument, and acknowledged thai they executed the

game ag their free sct and deed.
ﬁ&«_d&

4

fy Publiic, Barry  Cousiy, ¥ioh.
RAYMOND BOURDO

My commission expires Notary Public, Barry County, Michigan
My—Come dsiorrExpiTerWE. 12, 1974 -

Wot

5

o i o o e e A i L D Y O VP O Ot ot o N 0 S AL O

State of Michigan, Couniy of Barry; on this 28th day of September,
1970, before me perscnally appeared -

«dohn & Patsy Lake,“- Kemnith & Joyce Johncocke
Jimmy & Florence Fhlegar,s . Parl & Herma Dehn

M.¢. & Caroline Lake, « Lynden, 3Sr & Esther Johncocke-
Orin & Marjorie Arndt,s ¢.Dean & Norma Armoure~

Bobart & Norma Boyle, « Jerry & Dorlene Johncocke~

Lynden, dr & Marilyn Johntock, -

James & Lee Simon, s+

Peter & Gladys VanderVeen,c-

it tiilamid fancy Johnson &

sarah Buffenbarger .

Alanson & BettyJdo Kenyen .~

Ernest Anuls.-

~to me ¥nown to be the persons who deseribed in and who executed
tha foregoing lnstrument, and acknowledged that they executied the

same ag thelr free act and deed. . -

ic, Barry County, Mich,

My Commisslon explres,

RAYMOND BOURDO
Notary Public, Borry County, Michigan
- My Commission Expires Man 12, 1974




G ISTVAL
(*on~rofit)
IC . I&5az

AATICLAS O IF0C:: ORATION

GUN - HO

Uncer Act ifo. 137, rPurlic
pdets ef 1 1oal-#n “or 1020
as m<ggenred




The following opinion is presented on-line for informational use only and does not replace the official version. (Mich Dept of
Attorney General Web Site - www,ag.state.mi.us)

STATE OF MICHIGAN

FRANK J. KELLEY, ATTORNEY GENERAL

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION:
OPEN MEETINGS ACT:
SUMMER RESORT AND ASSEMBLY ASSOCIATIONS:

Application of Freedom of Information Act and Open Meetings Act to unincorporated property owners association and to sumimer
resort owners corporation

A private, voluntary unincorporated association of lake property owners is not a "public body" subject to the Freedom of
Information Act, MCL 15.231 et seq; MSA 4.1801(1) et seg, and the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.261 et seq; MSA 4.1800(11) et

seq.

CL455201 et seq; MSA
ot

Opinion No. 6942

July 3, 1997

Honorable Mike Rogers
State Senator

The Capitol

Lansing, MI 48933

You have asked two questions regarding application of the Freedom of Information Act and the Open Meetings Act, to summer
resort associations. Addressing your second question first, you ask whether a private, voluntary, unincorporated association of lake
property owners is a "public body" subject to the Freedom of Information Act, 1976 PA 442, MCL 15.231 et seq; MSA 4.1801(1)
et seq, and the Open Meetings Act, 1996 PA 267, MCL 15.261 et seq; MSA 4.1800(11) et seq.

The Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) entitles members of the public to access certain public records of public bodies. The
purpose and scope of the FOIA are delineated in the public policy statement set forth in MCL 15.231(2); MSA 4.1 801(1)X2).

[A]ll persons . . . are entitled to full and complete information regarding the affairs of government and the official
acts of those who represent them as public officials and public employees . . . so that they may fully participate in
the democratic process.

(Emphasis added.}

The FOIA defines the term "public body" to include municipal corporations and "[a]ny other body which is created by state or
local authority or which is primarily funded by or through state or local authority." Section 2(d)(iv). Under this definition, private
nongovernmental bodies are not subject to the FOIA. For example, in Perfongo v Iron River Cooperative TV Antenna Corp, 122
Mich App 433, 435; 332 NW2d 502 (1983), the court held that a private nonprofit cable television corporation was not a "public




body" under the FOIA since it was formed by four private persons and was not "created” by state or local authority even though
the city regulated the corporation, granted a non-exclusive franchise to it and some city commissioners served as members of its
board of directors.

The Open Meetings Act (OMA) requires a "public body” to open its meetings to the public, subject only to limited exceptions.
OAG, 1981-1982, No 6053, p 616 (April 13, 1982). Its purpose is "to promote a new era in governmental accountability . . . [and
to foster] openness in government as a means of promoting responsible decision making." Booth Newspaper, Inc v University of
Michigan Bd of Regents, 444 Mich 211, 222-223; 507 NW2d 422 (1993). The OMA defines a "[pJublic body" for purposes of that
act as "a board . . . which is empowered by state constitution, statute, charter, ordinance, resolution, or rule to exercise
governmental or proprietary authority or perform a governmental or proprietary function." Section 2(a). Only bodies empowered
by law to exercise governmental or proprietary authority are included within this definition. OAG, 1997-1998, No 6935, p (April
2, 1997). Since a purely private voluntary association possesses no such authority, it is not a "public body" subject to the act. See,
OAG 1989-1990, No 6563, p 27, 33-35 (January 26, 1989)

It is my opinion, therefore, in answer to your second question, that a private, voluntary, unincorporated association of lake
property owners is not a "public body” subject to the Freedom of Information Act and the Open Meetings Act,

. " You also ask whether a corporation formed under the summer resort owners corporation act, 1929 PA [37, MCL 455.201; MSA
X 21.751 et seq, is a "public body" subject to the Freedom of Information Act, 1976 PA 442, MCL 15.231 et seq; MSA 4.1801(1) et
seq, and to the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, MCL 15.261 et seq; MSA 4.1800(11) et seq.

While owners of land eligible for membership in the resort owners corporation cannot initially be made subject to the
corporation's jurisdiction, an election may be called after the corporation has continued to function for a period of two years, to
determine whether the entire territory comprising the subdivisions or part of subdivisions affected should become incorporated.
(Emphasis added.) Section 6. As a consequence of this section, it is possible that at least some propeny owners may be
involuntarily compelled to submit to the corporation's jurisdiction.

The authority conferred by statute upon resort corporations is, in some respects, distinetly limited. The corporation does not
control its streets and roads to the exclusion of township and county highway authorities. Baker v Roscommon County Road
Comm, 329 Mich 671, 676; 46 NW2d 579 (1951). It has no right of taxation. OAG, 1943-1944, No. 0-1795, p 634 (February 2,
1944), The corporation has no zoning powers. OAG, 1975-1976, No 5065, p 731 (December 17, 1976). Its property is not exempt
from ad valorem property taxation, even though the corporation possesses "some of the attributes of municipal corporations.”
OAG, 1951-1952, No 1391, p 229 (May 7, 1951). The corporation is subject to state plat laws. OAG, 1981-1982, No 5899, p 180
{(May 12, 1981). The Michigan Supreme Court has characterized as "quasi-governmental” the grant by 1929 PA 137 of "certain
police powers over the lands owned by said corporation and within its jurisdiction, and to provide penalties for the violation of the
bylaws established under police powers."” Baldwin v North Shore Estates Ass'n, 384 Mich 42, 52; 179 NW2d 398 (1970).

Notwithstanding the above limitations, however, the corporation is authorized to assess annual dues and special assessments
against its members for purposes of carrying into effect its enumerated powers. Section 19. Additionally, the resort owners
corporation is granted certain police powers on the lands of its members, including the regulation of sanitary conditions,
preservation of water quality, prevention of disorderly assemblies, and the regulation of billiard pool rooms, bowling alleys, dance
halls, meat markets and butcher shops. Section 12. The corporation is further authorized to provide "a water system for its
members and occupants, a sewage system, fire protection and electric light service.” Section 17. The corporation's board of
trustees is authorized to enact bylaws, subject to repeal or modification by the members. Section 12. Any person who shall violate
the corporation's bylaws "shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor" and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine of up to
$25.00 or imprisonment in the county jail for up to 30 days. Section 14. To assure enforcement of this authority, the corporation's
board of trustees is authorized to appoint a marshal "whose duties shall be to enforce the by-laws" and who "shall have the
authority of a deputy sheriff in maintaining peace and order and the enforcement of law on the lands under the jurisdiction of the
corporation.” (Emphasis added.) Section 15.




FRANK I. KELLEY
Attorney General -

hittp:ffopinion/datafiles/1990s/op10013.htm

State of Michigan, Department of Attorney General
Last Updated 11/10/2008 15:49:34




INCORPORATION OF SUMMER RESORT OWNERS
Act 137 0f 1929

AN ACT to anthorize the formation of corporations by summer resort owners; to authorize the purchase,
improvement, sale, and lease of lands; to authorize the exercise of certain police powers over the lands owned
by said corporation and within its jurisdiction; to impose certain duties on the department of commerce; and
to provide penalties for the violation of by-laws established under police powers.

History: 1929, Act 137, EfL. Aug. 28, 1929:—Am. [982, Act 89, Imd. Eff. Apr. 19, 1982.

The Peopie of the State of Michigan enaci:

455,201 Summer resort owners; incorperation, purpose.

Sec. 1. That any number of frecholders, not less than 10, who may desire to form a summer resort owners
corporation for the better welfare of said community and for the purchase and improvement of lands to be
occupied for summer homes and summer resort purposes, may, with their associates and successors, become a
body politic and corporate, under any name by them assumed in their articles of incorporation, in the manner
herein provided.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929,—CL 1929, 10363;,—CL 1548, 455.201.

455.202 Articles of association; contents,

Sec. 2. The persons so associating shall subscribe and verify articles of association stating:

First: The corporate name chosen;

Second: The names and residences of the persons thus associating;

Third: A legal description of the land owned by each of such persons and to be subject to the jurisdiction of
the corporations;

Fourth: The purposes of such corporation;

Fifth: The number of trustees to manage the affairs of said corporation, their terms of office, the names of
the trustees for the first year or until the annual meeting of the corporation;

Sixth; The county in which its real estate shall be situate and its meetings held;

Seventh: The term of its existence, which shall not exceed 30 years;

Fighth; The persons so associating may provide for capital stock, in which case the articles of association
shall state the amount thereof, which shall not exceed 50,000 dollars in total par value, The names, residences
and number of shares subscribed by each, if any, at the time of the execution of the said articles of
asgociation.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929;—CL 1929, 10364;,—CL 1948, 455.202.

455203 Execution and acknowledgment of articles of association; filing articles with
department of commerce; classification of corporation as nonprofit.

Sec. 3. The exccution of such articles of association shall be acknowledged by the persons signing the
same before some officer authorized to take the acknowledgment of deeds. Such articles shall thereupon be
filed with the corporation and securities bureau of the department of commerce. For the purpose of payment
of all fees to the state, such corperation shall be classed as nonprofit.

History: 1929, Act 137, Bff. Aug. 28, 1929,—CL 1929, 10365;—CL 1948, 455.203,—Am. 1982, Act 89, Imd. Eff. Apr. 19, 1982.

455,204 Corporate powers and liabilities; property ownership, limitation.

Sec. 4. On compliance with the foregoing provisions of this act, the persons so associating, their successors
and assigns, shall become and be a body politic and corporate, under the name assumed in their articles of
association and shall have and possess all the general powers and privileges and be subject to all the liabilities
of a municipal corporation and become the local governing body. Such corporation may acquire by purchase,
devise or gift such real and personal property as it may desire for the purposes mentioned in its articles of
association: Provided always, It shall not at any time own to exceed 320 acres of land, but this proviso shall
not be construed to limit the area of its jurisdiction to exercise the police powers herein conferred over lands
of members.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929;,—CL 1929, 10366;,—Am. 1939, Act 133, Imd. Eff. May 23, 1939—CL 1948, 455.204.

455.205 Property; sale and disposition, proceedings.

Sec. 5. The trustees of such corporation, when thereunto authorized, by majority vote of the members of
such corporation voting thereon at any annual meeting, or any special meeting called expressly for that
Rendered Wednesday, February 26, 2025 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 2 of 2025
© Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov




purpose, by a general by-law, adopted and recorded, may sell, mortgage, give, grant, convey and lease said
lands or any part or portion thereof, upon such terms and subject to such reservations and restrictions as may
be deemed advisable.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929;—CL 1929, 10367,—CL 1948, 455.205.

455.206 Membership; eligibility; corporate jurisdiction as to property of nonmembers;
election.

Sec. 6. Persons eligible to membership in said corporation, at any and all times, must be fresholders of land
in the county of its organization and such land must be contiguous to the resort community in which the
corporation is organized; Provided, however, It shall not be necessary that the lands of all members shall join,
but it shall be sufficient if such lands are reasonably adjacent to the regort comimunity, so as to be benefited by
membership therein, and the trustees of the corporation, when lawfully authorized by the corporation, shall be
judges as to whether the lands of such proposed members are sufficiently identified with the common
interests of the other lands embraced within said corporate jurisdiction, to make proposed members eligible:
And provided further, That the land of no owner that does not voluntarily join such corporation can be
compelled to come under the jurisdiction of the corporation until after a body politic and corporate has been
incorporated under this act in the territory to be affected and has continued to function as such for a period of
2 years. Thereafter an election may be called by the board of trustees or board of directors within the territory
to be affected for the purpose of determining whether the entire territory comprising the subdivisions or parts
of subdivisions affected should become entirely incorporated.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929:—CL 1929, 10368;-—Am. 1939, Act 133, Imd. Eff, May 23, 1939:—CL 1948, 455.206.

Constitutionality: In Whitman v Lake Diane Corp, 267 MA 176 (2005), the Michigan court of appeals held that the provisions
concerning elections in the summer resort owners corporation act, MCL 455.201 et seq, violate the constitutional due process rights of
the persons whose property interests would be affected by the election.

455.206a Election and registration; notice.

Sec. 6a. For the foregoing purpose the said board of trustees or board of directors shall cause a notice of
such election and notice of registration to be published in 4 succeeding issues of some newspaper printed
within the county in which such territory is situated and having circulation within the affected territory, for 4
weeks immediately preceding such election. If no newspaper be published in such county, then such notice
shall be published in a newspaper published in an adjacent county.

History: Add. 1939, Act 133, Imd. Eff. May 23, 1939,—CL 1948, 455.206a.

Constitutionality: In Whitman v Lake Diane Corp, 267 MA 176 (2005), the Michigan court of appeals held that the provisions
concerning elections in the sumtmer resort owners corporation act, MCL 455201 et seq, violate the constitutional due process rights of
the persons whose property interests would be affected by the election.

455.206b Registration board; appointment, duties.

Sec. 6b. The board of trustees or board of directors shall cause a 3 man board of registration to be
appointed who shall establish a set of registration books to be opened and shall register therein all of the
qualified voters of such territory who shall apply for registration between the hours of 9 o'clock a.m. and 7
o'clock p.m, during the week prior to such election and at such other times prior to eiection day as such
registration board may permit.

History: Add. 1939, Act 133, Imd. Eff. May 23, 1939,—CL 1948, 455.206b.

Constitutionality: In Whitman v Lake Diane Corp, 267 MA 176 (2005), the Michigan court of appeals held that the provisions
concerning elections in the summer resort owners corporation act, MCL 455.201 et seq, violate the constitutional due process rights of
the persons whose property interests would be affected by the election.

455.206¢ Election; voters, eligibility.

Sec. 6¢. For the purpose of such election all freeholders who have resided week-ends in the territory to be
affected for a period 1 month prior to such election and who are qualified voters in any voting precinct of the
state of Michigan at general elections, are qualificd voters for the purpose of this act.

History: Add. 1939, Act 133, Imd, Eft. May 23, 1939;—CL 1948, 455.206¢.

Constitutionality: The residency requirement of this section constitutes a denial of equal protection in violation of Const 1963, art [,
§ 2, and US Const, am XIV, § 1. Baldwin v North Shore Fstates Association, 384 Mich 42; 179 NW2d 398 (1970).

In Whitman v Lake Diane Corp, 267 MA 176 (2005), the Michigan court of appeals held that the provisions concerning elections in
the summer resort owners corporation act, MCL 455.201 ¢t seq, violate the constitutional due process rights of the persons whosc
property interests would be affected by the election.

455.206d Election board; polls, hours open.
Sec. 6d. The board of trustees or board of directors of such summer resort incorporation shall appoeint an
Rendered Wednesday, February 26, 2025 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 2 of 2025

© Courtesy of www.legisiature.mi.gov




election board of 5 members who shall keep the polls open from 7 o'clock a.m. until 8 o'clock p.m. and permit
all registered qualified voters to vote upon the proposition submitted.

History: Add. 1939, Act 133, Imd. Eff. May 23, 193%;—CL 1948, 455.206d.

Constitutionality: In Whitman v Lake Diane Corp, 267 MA 176 (2005), the Michigan court of appeals held that the provisions
concerning elections in the summer resort owners corporation act, MCL 455.201 et seq, violate the constitutional due process rights of
the persons whose property interests would be affected by the ¢lection.

455.206e Election; adoption of resolution, record.

Sec. 6e. If a majority of the said qualified voters of the entire territory comprised in the territorial
description contained in the notice of election shall vote in favor of the incorporation under this act, then the
said board of trustees or directors shall declare the entire territory so affected to be incorporated under this act,
and shall file with the county clerk and record with the register of deeds of the county wherein the territory is
situated copies of the notice of election, and the resolution of the board of directors or board of frustees
declaring the election carried and thereafter such territory shall all become so incorporated.

History: Add. 1939, Act 133, Imd. Eff. May 23, 1939;—CL 1948, 455.206e.

Constitutionality: In Whitman v Lake Diane Corp, 267 MA 176 (2005), the Michigan court of appeals held that the provisions
concerning elections in the summer resort owners corporation act, MCL 455,201 et seq, violate the constitutional due process rights of
the persons whose property interests would be affected by the clection.

455.207 Members; grant of authority, procedure.

Sec. 7. Members admitted to said corporation at its organization and afterwards, shall file with the
secretary of said corporation a writing, subscribed, witnessed and acknowledged, in accordance with the
requirements of deeds, which writing shall grant to the corporation the right to exercise all jurisdiction,
conferred by this act, over the lands owned by members of said corporation. Such grant of authority to the
corporation shall be duly recorded in the office of the register of deeds of the county.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eif. Aug. 28, 1929,—CL 1929, 10369;—CL 1948, 455.207.

455.208 Annual meeting; trustees, election, report.

Sec. 8. The annual meeting of such association shall be held in its own county between June first and
August thirty-first of each year, at such time and place as may be fixed by the board of trustees and such
meeting may adjourn from day to day as may be necessary for the transaction of its business. At each annual
meeting there shall be elected such number of trustees as shall be necessary to fill the places of trustees whose
terms of office then expire, and all vacancies on such board. Such election shall be by ballot and choice of
trustees shall be by a majority of all votes cast. Members may vote in person or by proxy filed with the
secretary. Each member shall be entitled to 1 vote. Husbands and wives, owning property by entireties, shall
each be entitled to 1 vote. Membership shall terminate upon the alienation of the property of a member. At
each annual meeting the trustees shall make a report, in writing, of the management of the business of the
corporation, the condition of its property, its assets and liabilities, and upon such other matters as may be
proper and of general interest to the members.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929;,—CL 1929, 10370;,—CL 1948, 455.208.

455.209 Board of trustees; officers, gquorum, vacancy,

Sec. 9. Immediately following the election of trustees, the trustees so chosen shall elect a president,
vice-president, secretary and treasurer from their members, who shall hold their offices for 1 year and until
their successors shall be elected and qualified. They shall discharge the usual duties of such offices and such
other duties as may be prescribed by the by-faws and orders of the corporation. Two-thirds of the members of
the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and any vacancy in the board may be filled
by the remaining membets, and the appointee shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the
corporation.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929,—CL 1929, 10371;—CL 1948, 455.209.

455.210 Board of trustees; powers.

Sec. 10. The board of trustees shall have the management and control of all the business and all the
property, real and personal, of the corporation and shall represent the corporation, with full power of authority
to act for it in all things legal whatsoever, and subject only to restrictions or limitations imposed by the
by-laws of the corporation and any special restriction or limitation imposed by a vote of the members at any
annual or regularly called special meeting. The time and manner of special meeting shall be provided for in
the by-laws,

Rendered Wednesday, February 26, 2025 Page 3 Michigan Campiled Laws Complete Through PA 2 of 2025
© Cotirtesy of www.legisiature.mi.gov




History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929;—CL 1929, 10372;—CL 1948, 455.210.

455.211 Corporate jurisdiction; liability for condition of streets.

Sec. 11. Such corporation, through its properly delegated officers, shall have jurisdiction over the lands
owned by the corporation and over the lands owned by the members of said corporation for the exercise of the
police powers herein conferred. The corporation shall have jurisdiction over the streets and highways passing
through or over such lands: Provided always, That the right of the public to control, repair and use all such
highways and streets as are necessary for the public travel through or across said lands, shall not be affected
hereby: And provided further, That the public shall not be liable for the condition, safety or repair of such
streets, alleys or highways as may be laid out and used on the authority of said corporation.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929;—CL 1929, 10373,—CL 1948, 455.211.

455.212 By-laws; enactment, authority of board of trustees.

Sec. 12. The board of trustees shall have the authority to enact by-laws, subject to repeal or modification
by the members at any regular or special meeting, calculated and designed to carry into effect the following
jurisdiction over the lands owned by the corporation and its members, viz.: To keep all such lands in good
sanitary condition; to preserve the purity of the water of all streams, springs, bays or lakes within or bordering
upon said lands; to protect all occupants from contagious diseases and to remove from said lands any and all
persons afflicted with contagious diseases; to prevent and prohibit all forms of vice and immorality; to
prevent and prohibit all disorderly assemblies, disorderly conduct, games of chance, gaming and disorderly
houses; to regulate billiard and pool rooms, bowling alleys, dance halls and bath houses; to prohibit and abate
all nuisances; to regulate meat markets, butcher shops and such other places of business as may becomne
offensive to the health and comfort of the members and occupants of such lands; to regulate the speed of
vehicles over its streets and alleys and make general traffic regulations thereon; to prevent the roaming at
large of any dog or any other animal; to compel persons occupying any part of said lands to keep the same in
good sanitary condition and the abutting streets and highways and sidewalks free from dirt and obstruction
and in good repair. '

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, >—CL 1929, 10374,—CL 1948, 455.212.

455.213 By-laws; effective date, posting.

Sec. 13. All by-laws, so established by the corporation, shall take effect 10 days after passage and each of
said by-laws shall be posted comspicuously in 3 public places within the jurisdictional area of said
corporation, at least 5 days before the time of taking effect and proof of such posting shall be made by an
officer of the corporation and entered on the records of said corporation. Complete and accurate copies of all
by-faws shall be kept, at the office of the corporation, for public inspection.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug, 28, 1929;—CL 1929, 10375;,—CL 1948, 455.213.

455.214 By-laws; violation, penalty.

Sec. 14. Any person who shall violate any of such by-laws shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and
upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine of not exceeding 25 dollars or imprisonment in the county
jail not to exceed 30 days or by both such fine and imprisonment in the discretion of the court, which fine
shall be distributed to the same fund as other misdemeanor fines in the township where such lands may be
located.

History; 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929;-—CL 1929, 10376,—CL 1948, 455,214,

455.215 Marshal; powers, compensation, removal.

Sec. 15. The board of trustees may appoint a marshal, whose duties shall be to enforce the by-laws of said
corporation. Said marshal shail have the authority of a deputy sheriff in maintaining peace and order and the
enforcement of law on the lands under the jurisdiction of the corporation, and in addition thereto shall be
vested with authority to make arrests, in accordance with law, for the violation of the by-laws of said
corporation. Compensation of said marshal shall be fixed and paid by said corporation and the said
corporation shall alone be responsible for his acts; he may be removed at any time by a majority vote of the
trustees, with or without cause; in the discharge of his duties in respect to any matter that is an offense against
the general laws of the state, his fees and charges shall be regulated and paid in the same manner as other
officers.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 192¢,—CL 1929, 10377;,—CL 1948, 455.215.
455.216 Marshal; authority over person arrested.

Rendered Wednesday, February 26, 2625 Page 4 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 2 of 2025
© Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov




Sec. 16. The marshal shall have authority to take any person arrested before the district or municipal court
of the judicial disteict or municipality in which the lands of the corporation are situated, to be there dealt with
according to law.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929,—CL 1929, 10378;—CL 1948, 455.216;—Am. 1991, Act 151, Imd, Eff. Nov. 25, 1991,

455.217 Public utilities; corporate authority,
Sec. 17. The corporation shall have authority to provide a water system for its members and occupants, a
sewage systerm, fire protection and electric light service.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, [929,—CL 1929, 10379;,—CL 1948, 455.217.

455.218 Lands owned by corporation; annexation to city.
Sec. 18. Lands owned by the said corporation and its members may not be annexed to any city or village
without the consent of a 2/3 majority of the members of said corporation, at a regular or special meeting.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, £929;—CL 1929, 10380,—CL 1948, 455.218.

455.219 Members; dues and assessments.

Sec. 19. (1) The board of trustees may require that the members of a corporation pay annual dues and
special assessments for any purpose authorized under this act. All of the following apply to an assessment of
annual dues or a special assessment under this subsection:

(a) The approval of the members under subsection (2) is required.

(b) With the approval of the members under subsection (2), the board of trustees shall prescribe the time
and manner of payment and manner of collection of the annual dues or special assessment.

(c) With the approval of the members under subsection (2}, the board of trustees may provide that
delinquent annual dues or assessments shall become a lien upon the land of the delinquent member and may
provide the manner and method of enforcing that lien.

(2) Unless the members by a vote of a majority of all of the members have by resolution specifically
provided for approval by a majority of the votes cast by the members voting, the vote of a majority of all of
the members of the corporation is required to approve an action of the board under subsection (1).

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff. Aug. 28, 1929—CL 1929, 10381;,—CL 1948, 455.219;—Am. 2006, Act 44, Imd. Eff. Mar. 2, 2006.

Compiler's note: Enacting section 1 of Act 44 of 2006 provides:

"Enacting section 1. Bt is the intent of the legislature to reconcile conflicting opinions of the attorney general in the interpretation of
this act, and to ratify the opinion of the attorney general in attorney general opinion no. 7164 of 2004, concerning the appropriate vote of
the members required to approve an action of the board under section 19."

455,220 Corporate term of existence; expiration; cessation of jurisdiction.

Sec. 20. When a cotporation, organized under this act, shall dissolve or its term of existence expires by
limitation, all jurisdiction over streets, alleys and highways shall cease and the said streets, alleys and
highways shall thereupon become dedicated to the use of the public, and in such case the lands of the
members shall be cleared of all jurisdiction conferred by the provisions of this act.

History: 1929, Act 137, Eff, Aug. 28, 1929;—CL 1929, 10382;-CL 1948, 455.220.

Rendered Wednesday, February 26, 2025 Page 5 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 2 of 2025
© Courtesy of www.legisialtire.mi.gov




AGENDA REQUEST MEETING DATE: January 6 2026

Requestor/Contact Person: Clerk Risner

Budget Line Item (if applicable): Township Board Miscellaneous & Dues
REQUEST DETAILS: Board discussion on whether to renew Sam’s Club & MiDeal
since we don’t have any major purchases coming up




